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In a time of universal deceit, 

telling the truth is a revolutionary act.

- George Orwell
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PROLOGUE: The Beginning of Time
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At the beginning of time, there is said to be a Vampire who does not fit the description we know today. Indeed, Aleksis Sazanùs, the first Vampire in history, did not have Vampire fangs. It is said that he had a long-lasting and beautiful romantic relationship with a human and that he understood late and at his own expense that she had hidden many of her capacities from him. For this human was also a seasoned Witch, and she had always been cautious not to let him into the full extent of her aptitudes.

She was madly in love with him, but he did not want her by his side. That mattered little to the Witch, as she made use of her powers to hypnotize Aleksis, and so she achieved her goal without much difficulty. She was aware of his vampiric nature and that he needed human blood to live. But her love for him was such that she sacrificed a bit of her own blood every day for him to drink. He was so greedy that he nearly murdered his mate several times, and with the help of the spell she cast on him, he was very angry with himself every time she was in pain.

During the day, the Vampire would hide from the sunlight, as it could have killed him. Meanwhile, the Witch attended her herbalist shop, which was usually frequented by her fellow humans. They visited her chiefly in order to request plants that would cure their more or less grave illnesses. In rarer cases, they would come to buy love potions or even spells to charm someone.

Fearing that her mate would learn that she mastered her abilities much better than she wished to admit, she always responded in the same manner to all the customers who asked for this kind of service: “I do not know the Witches’ spells. I am not one myself.” Mylena Zetùnova protected her skills in such a way that very few people could tell who she really was. She was clever; she was a master at hiding her secrets and had only entrusted the full extent of her gift to those who truly needed them.  

From the union between this hypnotized Vampire and this Witch, Luisù Sazanùs was born. He was the first fanged Vampire in history. Noting the presence of these strangely elongated canines on her child, Mylena asked herself a thousand questions. Fearing the future actions of this child, she decided to repudiate him and then abandon him. The father had no say in this matter since she explained to him the visions she had had at the time of giving birth to their son, visions that made her realize that Luisù would become a great threat to the whole world. A drastic decision had to be made to keep him from harming anybody, and the Witch had no better idea than to get rid of him.

But Luisù survived this abandonment, and he understood that the human race that his mother was a part of was nothing but an inferior race to his, which was immortal due to its half-vampiric nature. Hungry for power, he was convinced that when the time was right, he could rule the world. He began a crusade against humans; he began to massacre them one after the other, without anyone being able to stop him.

For his part, Luisù's father realized that his son was still alive and that he was trying to take absolute control over the world, which he alone possessed. Faced with the threat that his offspring was becoming, he decided to pass on the power of his blood by making a young woman, whom he found at random during his wanderings, drink it. The woman was called Eleonore, and he vowed to protect her from all danger so that his race could not be wiped out. He entrusted Eleonore to a maid of the Fangless Vampires cause, Maria-Theresa. Her husband, Igor Rostadov, was an ambitious Romanian nobleman whom Aleksis had taken control of by transforming him into a fangless Vampire as well.

The Witch also had to admit that her son Luisù had survived her abandonment, as he was decimating so many humans that she had no choice but to acknowledge the obvious. She did everything she could to prevent him from further harming this world and the people she valued so much. It took a lot of reflection on her part to come up with a plan, but she succeeded.

With the aid of her magical capacities, she created the Novae Terrae, a perfectly transparent sphere in which she managed to lock the secrets that surrounded the birth of Luisù birth so that humans could never find out about the existence of the Vampires. She was also able to secure her own powers into it so that Luisù would not be able to take possession of them. But she also took away the possibility for human beings to assimilate the blood that the fangless Vampires made them drink. Because she was so angry with herself for having had this unwanted child, Luisù, that she promised herself that no more Vampires would see the light of day, whether they had fangs or not. She realized that humans would be in danger if such creatures came to attack them. Being a human herself, she refused to let that happen.

But she made a big mistake. Fangless Vampires had to make mortals drink their blood to turn them into Vampires; Mylena knew that which is why she had blocked this cause-and-effect relationship. But Luisù, due to the presence of fangs, did not act the same way to turn his human victims into Vampires. He was the one who drank their blood; he just had to stop before killing them, and that was what made these human beings like him. Of this fact, Witch Mylena was unaware. And so, she could not stop it – that was her mistake.

From that point on, all humans to whom the original fangless Vampire passed on his powers would find themselves mysteriously dying sometime after he made them drink his blood, without his being able to understand the reason why. The same was true for Eleonore, the last human that Aleksis was able to transform before the Witch blocked the process. She was also the victim of this curse, which she was equally unable to explain.

The Witch, on the other hand, was aware that being mortal, she would eventually die and so she would not be able to infinitely protect her creation – the Novae Terrae. She established an order that she called the Eternals, giving them the mission to take care of the sphere and to make sure it would never fall into the wrong hands. She gave them the Novae Terrae and asked them to go far away to hide it, which they did. But Luisù had not yet uttered his last word. Although he did not find traces of his mother until several centuries after her death, he learned of the existence of the Novae Terrae and swore, from the moment he made this discovery, to get his hands on it.

The Witch would never find out about the existence of Eleonore who, from the top of Bran Castle, in Romania, never understood why all the humans to whom she gave her blood died a few months later. She had been equally affected by Mylena’s curse, so she could not grow her army, thus being unable to fight the fanged Vampires.

For Luisù, who was not prevented from passing on his powers, had built up a veritable army. One of his descendants – having heard of the fame and power of the Basarabs and seeking a way to extend the domination over the Vampires-with-fangs world – had managed to come into contact with the mighty Wallachian prince, Vlad II. He managed to convince the prince to become a Vampire. Vlad II had been a member of the Order of the Dragon since 1431. The Order of the Dragon was an order of chivalry founded in 1408 by the King of Hungary, Sigismund of Luxembourg, alongside his second wife, Barbe de Cilley.

After joining the order, Vlad II received the nickname ‘Dracul’, meaning ‘The Dragon’. Before his death in 1447, he passed on his status as a Vampire to his son, Vlad III, so that he in turn could join the war against humans that had already lasted for centuries. From that moment on, Vlad III’s reputation as an Impaler raised in importance. He liked to use his vampiric powers in his desire to wreak havoc everywhere he went, up until his beheading in 1476. Previously, in 1457, he had the citadel of Poenari erected, not far away from the Bran Castle, where another nobleman, Igor Rostadov, had settled a few years earlier.

This was the time when the Eternals, becoming aware of their inability to fight both the fanged Vampires and those without fangs, decided to block access to the Novae Terrae, allowing only one man to use it. That man was a Hunter, bent on retrieving the item and defending it against the Vampires descended from Luisù as they continued to fight the fangless Vampires.

They chose to name Hunter a member of the Wlidùcious family and agreed to hide him somewhere no one would ever suspect he could be, closest to one of their worst threats: under the foundations of the citadel of Poenari, the abode of Vlad III, who was the next target of the Eternals. In parallel with the naming of the first Hunter in history, they continued their quest and found themselves at Bran Castle, where Igor Rostadov, the Romanian nobleman and fangless Vampire who had erected it, awaited. The Eternals decided to engage their Hunter in this clash, although fighting the Fangless Vampires was not one of his responsibilities; but it was a good opportunity for him to step up. Indeed, this was his first real fight to the death and the Eternals took advantage of it so that their Hunter defeated Igor, in 1459, forcing his wife Maria-Theresa to flee with Eleonore. She would head south and settle in Spain a few decades later. 

As for Luisù, in his quest for the Novae Terrae, he encountered the first Vampire Hunter in 1470, as well as the Eternals created by his mother, who joined in this particularly difficult fight. Luisù lost the fight, and it was Vlad III who took over until he was slain by the Turks in 1476.

The mishap caused by the descendants of Luisù will continue over the centuries, until the present time, when they will gradually attract the attention of the media, which will report more and more worrying disappearances. Especially disappearances of minors, as Luisù's offspring mainly attacked them – the future of the human race. Vampires needed human blood to nourish themselves, and they had a particular preference for that of young children, which was the purest.

The fangless Vampires also needed blood to survive, but since they did not have sharp fangs like their brethren, they had to use tricks. During ancient times, they would cut off different parts of the bodies of their victims in order to drink. Recently, they have started going to food banks or preying on stray animals. These facts will be reported in the media, without the articles specifying who or what was responsible for the death of these animals, as they showed no sign of bites.
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CHAPTER 1: The Tale of the Hunters
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In 1474, four years after eliminating Igor Rostadov – the only fangless Vampire they knew of to have gotten his hands on the Novae Terrae – the Eternals urged their Hunter, from the entrails of the citadel of Poenari, to attack the Wallachian prince who had it built, Vlad III. Indeed, this Vampire was then the main threat to the Novae Terrae. The Hunter, thus, plucked up his courage and attempted to assassinate Vlad III. But he failed and was forced to flee Romania for fear of punishment.

He chose to go north, crossing Ukraine, until he reached Poland, taking advantage of the conflict between these different countries to go unnoticed. But arriving in Poland, where the Thirteen Years’ War had ended just five years earlier, leaving an indelible mark on the territory, the Hunter had great difficulty in concealing the Novae Terrae – which he had taken with him as the Eternals had asked him to do.

Therefore, he waited in the shadows until the end of the conflict and then set out in search of a way to accomplish another objective imposed on him by the Eternals: that of finding himself a wife to produce an heir who would take over as Hunter after his death. He had a son in 1478. The first Hunter in history managed to survive long enough to be able to pass the Novae Terrae into the care of his child. It was in possession of this object that the latter left Poland, without having any idea about the sphere’s utility since his father had not had enough time to pass on to him this information. 

He had been under close surveillance by the Eternals, who made sure that the sphere was always well protected while gradually stepping away from the Hunters, whom they now watched only from afar. Several generations of Hunters came and went, between Poland and Germany, where Stanislas Wlidùcious was born in 1902.

Starting with the first Hunter, a record book has been established to keep track of the twists and turns surrounding the Novae Terrae, based on an idea of the first Hunter in history. Hitler was very interested in everything related to the paranormal. In fact, before discovering the existence of this record, he succeeded in obtaining a copy of the Voynich manuscript. That was old writing – dating back to the 15th century – and that later have inspired Abdul AlHazred's Necronomicon. This manuscript had the effect of rising in the Führer a growing interest in occult sciences.

One thing led to another, and so Hitler learned of the existence of the Hunters’ Record Book and began probing ways to get his hands on it. In 1933, he sent the secret SS branch of the Thule society – created on August 17, 1918, by a certain Rudolf Von Sebottendorf – in search of the Hunters. These secret agents will report to him the information that the line of the Hunters had taken its origin within the Wlidùcious family, and thus, Hitler began his search of the descendants of this family. He discovered that a man named Stanislas Wlidùcious lived precisely in Germany, and decided to approach him.

Stanislas’s wife, Elisabeta, thus received a letter with the Chancellor’s seal, inviting her and her husband to come and meet Hitler. She agreed to go, curious as to why such an important man as Adolf Hitler wanted to speak to them. When the latter began to mention the existence of the Hunters’ Record Book, Stanislas stiffened. Of course, he had heard of this book, he himself had already added valuable lines to it since he had received it from his father. There he had recorded details of all the fights he had fought to date, mostly against various fanged Vampires, all descendants of Luisù Sazanùs, the first fanged Vampire in history. Like his father and others before him, Stanislas was born to take over in the fight against these creatures of the night and had been trained for this very purpose by his father.

When, during the meeting with Hitler, Stanislas understood from the words of his interlocutor that he wanted to get his hands on the Hunters’ records, he exchanged a meaningful look with his wife Elisabeta. Hitler must not be let into the knowledge that they kept this book at home, and by mutual agreement, they mentioned nothing of it. But the Chancellor was smarter than he seemed. He noticed that they were lying to him and tried to persuade them by promising them a prominent place in his government. While Elisabeta remained silent, surprised by such a proposal, Stanislas thought only of the duty that weighed on his shoulders. So he flatly refused what Hitler offered them. The latter, rightly known for his choleric character, entered into a rage so intense that the couple had to hastily flee the room. As night had fallen, they had no great difficulty avoiding being spotted, passing through the darkest streets in order to return home.

In addition to the hatred that gripped him for the couple he lost trace of, Hitler was deeply anti-Semitic. His main goal was to take full control over the country and neighbouring countries as well. He found himself in a period in which he needed to focus on the Nuremberg Laws, which were to come into effect shortly after the first of a long series of laws that segregated the Jews from the Germans. Two years earlier, he had accepted the Haavara accord, which allowed German Jews to set sail for Palestine, still giving up their wealth to the German state. It represented a way for Hitler to keep German resources in the country. He had nevertheless resolved to send some of his henchmen in pursuit of Stanislas and Elisabeta, in case they tried to escape without giving him what he wanted.

Guards had therefore taken up positions, under Hitler’s orders, in front of their house. They awaited the possible return of their targets and threatened anyone who approached the house. When at a bend in the street a few meters further away Stanislas and Elisabeta realized that their home was being watched, they had no choice but to turn back. The only problem was that they had nothing with them, and, above all, the record book was in the attic of their house, amidst Stanislas’s childhood possessions that had been gathering dust in there for many years. They had to find a way to recover this precious object, along with the Novae Terrae, which was hidden in the same place.

The Eternals, who have been in hiding for several centuries already, but who still remained close enough to the Hunters to make sure the Novae Terrae was safe, realized that Stanislas was in trouble. For hundreds of years, they had vowed to come into contact with the Hunters only in case of dire need. The time had come for them to meet the Hunter of that time. Stanislas did not immediately understand who were these mysterious beings, who concealed their faces behind large dark hoods and who came to introduce themselves at the bend of a street as dark as the others.

“We are the Eternals,” said a female voice among them serenely, sounding almost hollow.

Stanislas’ eyes widened. For having consulted the Book of the Hunters extensively, and for having written many sentences of it himself, he understood only too well what the term ‘Eternals’ meant. However, he had left Elisabeta out of this part of the story and only told her the essential. She knew he was a Hunter, and she was aware of his mission to protect the Novae Terrae, but he had never allowed her to learn more.

“You are in difficulty,” continued the Eternal in the same tone, “and we have come to help you.”

Stanislas was a man of common sense, and he immediately felt that he could trust this group that presently introduced themselves to him. He informed the Eternals that he feared for the safety of the Novae Terrae. The Eternal answered him that they had knowledge that the Novae Terrae was in his house and told him that they had gone in search of it before coming to meet him. Stanislas, for an answer, sighed with relief. He had had truly panicked when he noticed the soldiers in front of the house which concealed this object he had to protect at the cost of his own life. That feeling still haunted him at the present moment, so much so that he could not grasp what to say to these Eternals whom he did not expect to ever meet.

Knowing the Novae Terrae safe was his dearest objective and nothing would have panicked him more than seeing this precious sphere in danger. And yet, he did not know what this orb contained; that remained a mystery for him. He had taken all the time he needed to read the entire Hunters’ Record Book, hoping to find out what the Novae Terrae was meant for. But none of his ancestors had clearly described why it was created, by whom, and much less what it was meant for. Nevertheless, all testified to its utmost importance and the threat posed to it by the descendants of a certain Luisù Sazanùs.

There was also very little information on this subject. The first Hunter in history had recounted in the book his cruel battle against Luisù Sazanùs, alongside the Eternals of whom he had given only a very brief account. He had simply mentioned that they were the ones thanks to whom he had become the Vampire Hunter and that they had trained him in combat in order to protect the Novae Terrae, which they entrusted to him the moment he was ready for that task, both physically and mentally. Stanislas understood from this reading that the Eternals were guides.

But he had also perceived that they seemed to have gradually drifted away from the Hunters over the centuries, up until they were not mentioned at all in the book by the last Hunters before him. He himself had not had the chance to write about them, since he had never met them. Until this day, that is. If they had not intervened that night, the Hunters’ Record Book, as well as the Novae Terrae, would most likely have been found by Hitler’s militia. This would inevitably have taken place during the search of Stanislas’s house. The German leader might have had the ability, thanks to his agents, to understand what this sphere was and that would no doubt have led to a real catastrophe.

One of the Eternals behind the one speaking to Stanislas stepped forward. He held the Hunters’ Book, which he handed to him. Perhaps as a pledge of good faith so that Stanislas could place his trust in them. In any case, the Hunter interpreted this gesture thus and did not fail to thank the Eternal warmly while taking the book of his ancestors, which he was delighted to see again.

The Eternal did not respond to his thanks, despite their sincerity. These beings spoke little, uttering only the essential, and remained deeply mysterious in Stanislas’s eyes. Yet he was their closest ally, the only one among humans in fact. He asked several questions, but none triggered a response. No matter how hard he insisted, nothing would determine them to speak. Until the first Eternal, who was the only one who spoke to him, began to talk again, giving Stanislas a long tirade, which would remain his only great discourse, all uttered in a monotonous voice.

“Hunter, do not waste your time with futile questions. We must ensure your own safety as well; it is your life and the protection of Novae Terrae that matters. You have to leave Germany. One of our own is waiting for you in France, in Lille. Go there; he will find you and hide you until the war is over. You will not see any other Eternal afterwards, but we will never be too far away. We are watching you just as we watched your ancestors, to make sure the Novae Terrae remains safe. You do not need to know more, your ancestors told you the essentials through the pages of the record book. Do not ask questions; we will not answer them.

Stanislas understood that any attempt to get answers to his many questions would be a failure. The Eternal gave him no choice but to listen and do as he was told, leaving Germany for France, a country he knew only from the little he had learned in school; leaving his whole life behind, after several generations since the Wlidùcious had settled in Germany. This was an enormous, yet necessary sacrifice. He understood, even if he did not want to admit it.

He glanced at his wife. Elisabeta had remained silent until then. He was worried about what she thought of the situation, and what to expect. Would she follow him on his journey to France? He did not doubt that for a second. But in what state of mind? He did not know the answer to that question, and that was precisely what worried him the most at that moment. She felt her partner’s gaze on her but did not return it. When she did that, it was to indicate that she would not say anything, but she did not think the less of it either.

Stanislas turned his gaze back to the Eternal who had spoken and nodded in approval of his words. He knew the loyalty of his ancestors from their writings, and he could not afford to question the reason why he, Stanislas Wlidùcious, had come into the world. Because the Hunters, in addition to their mission of protecting the Novae Terrae, also had to ensure the perpetuation of their own legacy. It was therefore their duty to find a wife and then produce an heir, whether they wanted to or not. The Hunters were never to disappear; this was one of the most important lessons he had learned from the book.

Elisabeta and Stanislas, therefore, had no say and contented themselves with following the directives dictated by the Eternals. Elisabeta still did not utter a syllable as the couple set in motion to prepare for their escape. It took them no less than three long years before they could set foot in France. As the Eternals had ordered them, they had set sail for Lille, not without wondering how the stranger who was to welcome them would find them.

In the end, it was done in the simplest of ways, when Stanislas inadvertently bumped into a woman in the streets of the city while he was looking for accommodation with his partner. Stanislas apologized to the person he had bumped into. In response, she told him and Elisabeta to follow her. They did not immediately understand that they had just come across the one who was to take care of them.

However, this commotion could not be accidental, and as they entered the mysterious woman’s house Stanislas understood that. Elisabeta still had not uttered a word since their meeting with the Eternals in Germany; indeed, she had so far only opened her mouth when she absolutely had to. The conversation between her and Stanislas had broken off, to the sorrow of the latter, who realized that his concealing of the story about the Eternals was primarily responsible. The couple were not even arguing; they just were not talking at all. 

Thus, they settled in the house of the woman who was to take care of them a few years after leaving Germany, in 1936. She spoke little, but still took the time to tell them that she was one of the Eternals and that she was one of the few of her fellows to have mingled with the humans. But she did not give the reasons for so doing. In fact, Elisabeta and Stanislas got to know not only her but the whole neighbourhood as well. Stanislas tried to take advantage of the long evenings in the house, those unusual moments during which the woman was present, to get information about the Eternals. At no time did she agree to answer; Stanislas could not, therefore, know exactly who the Eternals were.

He enriched the Hunters’ Record Book with a few lines to point out this fact. He had a choice not to, but he wanted his descendants to know that the Eternals did not do any courtesy and consistently refused to give out any information about themselves when one had the chance to meet them. He added to his observations that whenever an Eternal spoke, however little he said, the Hunters had no choice but to listen and do as they were told. When he closed the book after having written this last line, he had the feeling of having done his duty. Not for him but for those who would follow in his steps.

As the months went by, no longer able to sit around the house without doing anything, Stanislas decided to look for a job. Times were hard; the Nazis approached the city, which they finally occupied at the beginning of June 1940. The four years which followed were particularly difficult for both Elisabeta and Stanislas and for the Eternal who welcomed them in her home. On several occasions, she had to hide them in her basement as soldiers passed by her house to check for anything unusual. She could not let the Hunter be spotted, and they had to go on and on like that for the whole of those four long years.

The summer of 1944 began with the bombardments of the region: rail lines were out of use, power cuts were a common thing, and people were confined to their homes. From July 21, arrests were made more and more, in Lille as much as in its surrounding cities. Shootings took place with each passing day. From August 30, the situation was reversed, and Hitler’s soldiers began to leave. On September 4, 1944, Lille finally regained its peace.

Elisabeta and Stanislas had survived the German occupation. The Eternal disappeared on one of the darkest days of the summer that had just ended, under circumstances that will remain unclear, leaving the couple alone in her house. It was unlikely that she got caught by the Nazis. In any case, the Hunter and his wife never knew what happened to her. Stanislas hoped to find the Hunters’ Book in the attic of the Eternal’s hallway, where he had thought it would be safe since his arrival in Lille. Fortunately, the precious book had not budged.

During the occupation, so that their eastern origins could not be guessed, the Eternal had found substitute names for Elisabeta and Stanislas. This is how they started to call themselves Jeanine and Léon Cervois so that they could hide their origins. Of course, they did not keep these names once the war was over; they took back their real surname as well as their first names. Luckily, no one had reported them to the Germans, so they were able to slip through the cracks with disconcerting ease.

And it was quite as easy that Stanislas was able to present himself to the coal mines of Pas-de-Calais, as soon as they were opened in 1946. Shortly before, in 1945, the couple produced the son so hoped for by Stanislas, the very one who was to take over in the protection of the Novae Terrae, which he had just been given back by the Eternals at the end of a final visit. They named him Paskal.

Paskal led his life like his father before him, and he too became a coal miner. He was given the Novae Terrae and the Hunters’ book in 1962. And he found himself a companion in the early 1970s, a woman with whom he had a son in 1979, whom they named Tomasz. But Paskal and his wife disappeared under mysterious circumstances in 1982, when their little boy was only 3 years old. Before the police arrived to take Tomasz to the child services, the Eternals came by and retrieved the Novae Terrae from their belongings. Such an object should certainly not fall into just any hands.

They left the Hunters’ Record Book in the house, however, especially since the name of the Wlidùcious was stamped on its cover. They did this so that Tomasz can keep it with him and take note of it when he is old enough to do so. The Eternals, therefore, found themselves in possession of the Novae Terrae, as in the early days of their existence, when the Witch Mylena Zetùnova used her magic in order to create it and their order.
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CHAPTER 2: A Human and a Vampire
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The night had taken possession of the place for several hours already when Tomasz woke up sweating, on the verge of panic. He had just had a terrible dream, a real nightmare. He was amid a deadly battle between hooded beings whose faces he could not make out and bloodthirsty Vampires who drained them of their vital fluid one by one. He – Tomasz – was in the middle of all this mess, feeling lost like a child and not knowing what to do, until an old, faded book magically appeared at his feet. The moment he bent down to pick up the book, he woke up with a start.

“I have seen this somewhere before...”

He knew then that he had already seen this object, this book, although he had never read it. But where? He fumbles to find the switch of his bedside lamp, the one resting on the small dresser next to his bed. When he finally turns the light on, it dazzles him so that it makes him close his eyes. It takes several seconds for him to get used to the aggressive glow that pierces the darkness he had been immersed in until then. He looks at the time displayed by the clock perched on the end of a string, itself hung from a nail stuck in the wall opposite his bed. It is two o’clock. What would be the point in trying to fall back asleep knowing that he would have to get up in just an hour’s time?

Tomasz starts work very early in the morning. At half-past four – Monday to Friday – he must be on the war footing, sitting in the back of the truck collecting the rubbish from people in neighbouring towns. It is not a very nice job, of course, but it is essential for a healthy environment. And then he does it wholeheartedly, not least because this job allows him to be able to go home for lunch, after which he has all the time to himself, to do whatever he wants. This is the main reason he decided to take up the profession. Tomasz has been a rubbish collector for over fifteen years; he knows his job inside out. He goes to work with as much pleasure as he comes back home.

He spends most of his spare time in the afternoon playing video games, walking his dog, or reimagining the world in his head. He does not have a girlfriend. Oh, he had a few before, only they never stayed with him for long. It must be said that he is not really what one could call a handsome man, even though he is, at the age of forty, in his prime. What is more, he is a great loner, who feels that he does not necessarily have to live with someone to be happy. He is fine the way he is.

After leaving out a sigh to express his frustration at not being able to get more sleep that night, he pushes the blanket aside and gets up. It is high time to get out of bed, and so he goes to the bathroom. Once in front of his mirror, he carefully examines himself. Through the mirror, he observes his emaciated face. He is not fully awake yet, his brown eyes are half-closed, and his shoulder-length hair is dishevelled, revealing the few white intruders hiding in there. Here is to a week that begins strangely.

By hook or by crook, he gets ready to take a shower. Once naked, he climbs – not with much ease – the step that separates him from the shower. And as he turns on the water, he tries to recall the nightmare he emerged from a few minutes earlier. It was so strange and mysterious that a thousand questions rushed through his head. He knew he had seen that book somewhere before, but he just could not seem to remember when and where. He was aware, however, that it was a long time ago.

It has been several years since Tomasz arrived in the heart of France. He was born in Lille, in 1979, to a coalminer father and a seamstress mother, who worked in the service of the bourgeoisie. He hardly knew his parents. In fact, they disappeared when he was only 3 years old, in circumstances so mysterious that the investigation, however much it lasted, could not provide a plausible explanation. No one has ever been able to say what happened to them. Tomasz was therefore placed in an orphanage, from which he did not come out until he was of age. He stayed a few more years in the Lille region, hoping to find a clue, however scant, about his parents and the real reason for their disappearance.

His search was fruitless, and so he left Lille for good in 2001, at the age of 21. He moved into this modest building which he still calls his home. It has a garage, a small courtyard, a relatively large living room, and an additional floor which he uses as a storage room. He has in fact put away all the boxes with things he did not dare to unpack when he arrived. Some of these have not been moved for years, and Tomasz is not even sure that he remembers exactly what they contain.

He always has something else to do, whether it is his job, his errands, or even his outings, which are not so many. Tomasz is happy with what he has; he is happy to live like this.

But for now, he is preoccupied with the dream he just had. No matter how much he tries to focus on it, he definitely does not understand its meaning. At least not until he finished his shower. Then he remembered. He has always had this book he saw in his troubling dream. It was one of the few belongings that he had since he went to the orphanage. It belonged to his father, who bequeathed it to him. Child services, when the child was in their care, right after his parents disappeared, arranged for him to keep this book.

Tomasz comes out of the bathroom with a cutter in hand and rushes upstairs, where all the boxes he has not had the courage to open lay around. He clings to the idea that he is going to be able to find the right one, the one that contains what he is looking for. The thing is he does not know how long it will take, especially since he does not have much time to spare. He will soon have to get ready to leave for work. Indeed, it is well past three in the morning, and he must be up and running by half-past four.

His colleague, Roger, is due to pick him up in less than forty-five minutes, which barely leaves him enough time to open a few of the boxes. As he had been strongly advised to do, Tomasz had not written down what was in each of the boxes, in order to reduce the chances of a dishonest man stealing the few valuables he possessed during his moving. Indeed, what better way to have your things stolen than to note on the boxes that they contain such and such a set of silverware, or such and such a set of jewellery? Tomasz is not ignorant; he knows he must be careful. And so, he did not write anything anywhere.

He begins to slide his cutter through the tape surrounding the first boxes within reach. As he glances inside them, he realizes that he has a lot of very useful things and that it was stupid to have forgotten about them. When he bought himself a strainer soon after moving into this house, he had overlooked the fact that he had one already, and of much better quality than the one he found at the local supermarket.

No doubt he will dig up more little treasures like this as he unwraps the boxes. Suddenly he regrets being so lazy. But now is not the time to whine – he has only opened a third of his boxes and the time to leave for work has already come. He has no choice but to resume the quest for that record book he dreamed of only after he has finished with the city’s rubbish containers.

Roger has just rung on his intercom. Tomasz rushes up the stairs to answer him, so fast that he almost fell. He barely avoids that and runs to the receiver. But he grabs it so quickly that it slips from his hands. He retrieves it just in time to hear what Roger was saying, not without puffing with annoyance.

“So, Tom, what are you doing?” he hears Roger say.

“Oh, hi Roger! Nothing really.” Tomasz replies, chuckling at his awkwardness. “I was upstairs. I got here too fast when you rang, almost fell and broke something, and on top of that I dropped the receiver.”

“Ha-ha!” sneers his colleague, “you’re a real piece of work. Come on, big boy, it’s time!”

Tomasz says he just needs to put on his shoes, and he’ll be off right away. When he hangs up, he can’t help but take a last look in the direction of the stairs leading to the second floor. He only wishes to get back as quickly as possible in the afternoon so that he can continue his search. The images of the dream he had haunted him so much that he cannot think of anything else. He suddenly feels as if he is a character in a mediocre thriller. Throughout the morning, Tomasz’s mind will keep wondering off. He had such a hard time concentrating on work so that Roger had to take over several times. Until the moment when exasperated, Roger raised his voice.

“Okay, Tom, that’s enough! If things were wrong this morning, you should have said so. I would have left on my own and I would have probably been more efficient. What the hell is the matter with you?”

“Nothing at all!” Tomasz answers without being taken aback. “I assure you that everything is fine.”

“To others, Tom, you might seem fine. But I know you, we’ve been working together for a long time now. I can tell from miles away that you’re not yourself today.”

Tomasz does not dare say anything more. He does not want to admit that his colleague is right. He would have to admit that he is so preoccupied with his dream from the night before that he cannot seem to focus on what he should have been doing since the start of his workday. His interlocutor is clearly waiting for an answer, but Tomasz ends up looking down in shame, not returning Roger’s inquiring gaze. The latter sighs and returns to his vehicle, which he had left with the engine running in order to quickly go to the next collection point. Tomasz climbs in the back and grips the bar firmly, so he does not fall off the truck.

The rest of the morning will be spent in silence between the two friends. Roger grumbles regularly as if to make Tomasz understand he should apologize, but Tomasz does not want to do it. He prefers to try and stay focused on what he has to do, which he achieves with the greatest difficulty. At the end of their workday, Roger drives him home but does not greet him. Tomasz does not wish Roger a good afternoon like he usually does on other days either.

Tomasz unlocks his front door and, as soon as he is inside, he picks up the cutter he had left on the first piece of furniture at hand when you enter the living room. He goes upstairs in a hurry as if he has too little time left. In fact, he has all afternoon to find what he is looking for. Even so, he feels that finding this record book is of utmost importance. After opening a dozen or so boxes, he finally collapses to the floor, in the middle of the room.

“Good God!” he begins to growl under his breath. “Where is it? I know I have it somewhere!”

Suddenly, he is interrupted by the intercom. This time, he does not run down the stairs, for fear of falling. He may miss the person who pressed the button outside, but that may not be as important as finding what he is looking for. It is with undisguised surprise that he realizes, as he picks up and answers, that the person has been patiently waiting for him to show up.

“Are you Tomasz Wlidùcious?” a hollow voice inquires.

“Who’s asking?” Tomasz grumbles, annoyed at having been stopped in his tracks.

“It doesn’t matter who I am,” the deep voice echoes. “I have a letter for you.”

“A what? A letter? What century do you live in, good man?”

Tomasz is not sure he fully understands what this is about. The tone of his interlocutor is so cold and distant that a shiver runs down his spine. What is this man talking about? Who exactly is he? Tomasz puts down the receiver and walks towards the window which allows him to see the gate door. On the other side of the window, he sees a figure dressed in black. The stranger is tall, but his face is too well concealed for Tomasz to be able to make it out. Taken aback, he goes back to his front door, which he unlocks only after making sure his cutter is in his pocket. Better safe than sorry.

He walks down the stairs, staring at the black figure who has not moved an inch. When he finally shows up at his gate, the figure hands him a sealed envelope. Tomasz takes just a second to observe the seal before looking up again at the person who gave him the letter. But the mysterious man disappeared without leaving the slightest trace as if he just vanished. Stunned, Tomasz looks at the envelope again. It is made of ancient-looking paper. As for the seal, he has never seen anything like it, but it looks just as old as the paper. He never beheld such as thing before.

He takes the cutter from the back of his pocket and begins to unseal the envelope. Inside the envelope, there is a letter of the same kind of old-looking paper. He unfolds the document and begins reading it diagonally. "... My name is Eleonore... tonight at dusk... the importance of... come alone..." Tomasz understands that someone wants to meet him. However, he does not know any Eleonore. Could she be an admirer? Perhaps she is a simple garbage collector like him? He strongly doubts it though. Still, the contents of the letter both intrigue and frighten him.

He goes upstairs, taking care to put the letter back in its envelope. Once upstairs, he closes his front door and casually throws everything on his coffee table. He has a lot more to think about right now; he feels it is becoming vital for him to get his hands on the record book he has been looking for since last night. But as he returns upstairs, the envelope seems almost to be calling his name. He does not understand who would still use such old paper today, or write in such a fancy manner, almost as if this letter came from a long-gone era.

He opens a few more boxes but pauses a few minutes later as if caught in his thoughts. The mysterious Eleonore who sent him the letter intrigued him so much that he could no longer keep looking for the record book he had dreamed of. And just like that, he leaves the last three boxes he had left to open and goes downstairs to read the letter more carefully.

“Dear Tomasz Wlidùcious, 

I bid you good day. My name is Eleonore. You do not need to know my last name. I need to speak to you; a conversation with you would be most valuable and represent a great help. I invite you to come to visit me in my tower, this evening at dusk. If you do not mind, my messenger will return and guide you to me. I hope by reading this letter you understand the importance of your presence this evening. I should like to ask you to come alone. Rest assured that nothing untoward will happen to you. You will get back home as you will come here. 

Please accept my best regards, Sir.”

Tomasz sits down on his sofa. What a strange letter! The handwriting is refined; without a doubt, the letter is from a woman. Tomasz takes the time to reread the few lines. This Eleonore does not really give him a choice, since she will send back the strange individual who brought him the envelope to pick him up, at sunset presumably.

He wonders if he has, by any chance, travelled in time without realizing it. Everything seems strange to him since the dream he had last night. First the record book, now this letter, the messenger that has vanished in a split second when he has taken his eyes off him, and this Eleonore who came out of nowhere to invite him to meet with her. Really, the facts are astounding, and Tomasz is not at all comfortable in the midst of it all, and it is with fear that he delves into his thoughts.

He does not notice how the hours go by. The sun begins to set on the horizon when he realizes that a lot of time has passed since he last reread Eleonore’s letter. The messenger should be back any moment, and he has not even thought of having dinner. His life is decidedly very strange. He spent most of his childhood in orphanages and barely knew his parents before their disappearance. All he knows about them is limited to the work they used to do. He is of course aware of having origins in the East, given his last name, which does not sound at all like a French name.

He wasted many hours, many days, searching for his roots but never finding anything useful. This is why he decided to leave Lille; he preferred to leave his unknown past behind him and look ahead, the only thing he was able to do in the end. As he remembers everything he has been through, the sound of his intercom interrupts him once again. It is the messenger who came to pick him up.

Tomasz does not resist when the mysterious individual presents himself and says he has come to bring Tomasz to his mistress. Tomasz grabs his keys and takes great care to lock the door behind him, after grabbing his jacket. As he descends the stairs, he cannot help but think of Roger. He felt like he was particularly thoughtless, and now he dreaded that he might not come back alive.

As soon as he tries to talk to the person who is taking him to where the meeting is to take place, the latter replies that he is not allowed to answer. Tomasz cannot, therefore, know where he is going, nor who Eleonore is. In fact, the tower mentioned in the woman’s letter was not that far away. Tomasz arrives there with his guide after a ten-minute journey. The latter’s last word will be to tell him that he must enter alone. Tomasz complies, not without a bad feeling.

After climbing the few steps of what appears to be more of a small castle than a tower, he turns the handle of the only door that he can see. No one greets him as he nervously walks inside. The light is particularly dim, letting him barely perceive what is in what appears to be the main room. It is indeed a living room, quite large. On the walls, he thinks he can distinguish what looks like an impressive number of paintings. Two huge armchairs stand in the middle of the room like vestiges of a distant era. As Tomasz begins to approach them, he hears light footsteps.

Someone has just appeared from a dark doorway to his right. A delicate scent of feminine perfume gently rises to his nostrils. Is this Eleonore? There is no longer any doubt when he begins to discern the sound of the frills of the satin of the dress worn by the person arriving. The stranger quietly walks towards him. He finally manages to see her a little better. She is indeed sporting an elegant white dress, and down her shoulders falls what appears to be long, dark hair. When she is close to him, she extends a hand, which he takes cordially to shake. She withdraws it immediately.

“Such manners!” said the woman in a suave voice. “Have you not been taught how you should pay homage to a lady?”

“Excuse me,” Tomasz answers in surprise. “I'm not sure I understand.”

“Come now, let us leave this behind us, young man. You seem very presumptuous to me. Do you not know to kiss a woman’s hand? You should revise your manners; you are particularly outrageous.”

Tomasz is stunned. Was it to give him lessons in decorum that this person summoned him? Now that she is close enough for him to be able to distinguish her properly, he can notice her detailed appearance. She is taller than him and unusually slender. She is indeed brunette, and it is indeed her hair that he perceived falling on her shoulders; it is really long and very dark. Her eyes, frowning at that precise moment, are more of a nutty colour. She seems to be about the same age as him.

She does not waste any more time scolding her guest and invites him to sit on one of the armchairs. He does so shyly, without saying a word. She seats herself on the other armchair, installed almost opposite the first. On the small table in front of them are two empty champagne glasses, but no bottle. As Tomasz wonders what he has come for, the young woman speaks.

“I am Eleonore, although I am not delighted to meet you.”

Tomasz stays silent. The manner in which Eleonore speaks sounds foreign to him; it seems to him that she has come from another time, or even from another planet. Even the dress she wears, satin as he had guessed from the noise it made, is old-fashioned. Eleonore says nothing more; she seemed to be waiting for a reaction from Tomasz, but he did not know what to say. The situation stays awkward for several minutes before the young woman resumes speaking.

“You speak very little,” she said, smiling inquiringly.

“Well, I barely arrived, and you started criticising me, so I'm not sure what to say to you that wouldn't upset you even more.”

“Do not fear,” continues Eleonore in the same tone. “I do not intend to take your life if that is what you are afraid of. To be honest, that would not be in my best interest since I need your assistance.”

“I understood as much from reading your letter. Where do you get your paper from? Does this kind of paper still exist?”

“Let us not divagate,” Eleonore gently scolds. “I have some important matters to discuss with you. The paper I use for my correspondence is just a detail.”

Tomasz swallows back what he was about to say. He would have liked to know where she got her paper because he had never seen such a thing before. But she does not seem to be ready to let him waste her time with such a trivial question. A second after she sank back into the chair she was sitting on, she was sitting straight again.

“Tomasz,” she continues, “listen to me carefully. As you have learned from reading this, my name is Eleonore.”

“I know, this is the third time that you’ve mentioned it!” he answers impatiently.

“I am a direct descendant of the Ekimmu.”

Tomasz raises an eyebrow. She aroused his curiosity. He now wonders what exactly she wants to talk to him about, and above all, what is her connection to him. He therefore patiently awaits for her to resume. Eleonore speaks again, disregarding Tomasz’s quiet reaction.

“Your history books do not really mention us. The Ekimmu are the oldest Vampire family this planet has ever borne.”

“Vampires?!”

Now Tomasz does not know whether to laugh or to cry. He feels scared, because if what she is telling him is true, then he probably is in danger. But he also wants to laugh; the situation is so ridiculously grotesque. He stiffened in his chair, awaiting the rest of the story with anxiety taking hold of him.

“You heard me right,” continues Eleonore.

“But you can’t be a Vampire,” said Tomasz hesitantly, “you don’t have fangs.”

“Hmm,” Eleonore hummed with a slight smile. “So the stories of your ancestors have not passed through the generations.”

“It’s not really the kind of story you learn in school, you know. But I want details if you will give me some.”

Tomasz suddenly shows self-confidence that surprises him. He is convinced that this young woman in front of him is nothing more than a fraud and that he is just the victim of a bad joke. However, he is not sure who might be the joker. He has few friends, and none of them would be twisted enough to give him a blow like this. He stares at his interlocutor, expecting her to burst out laughing as she confesses that indeed, this is all a big joke. But Eleonore keeps the same serious expression that she has sported since his arrival.

“Can we continue?” she asks, annoyed.

“Truth be told, I was just waiting for that,” Tomasz replies with an irony that he hopes hides his fear.

Eleonore frowns. A bad mood seems to take over her, which makes Tomasz even more uneasy. Maybe she is not kidding, after all. He in turn sits straight in his chair, his hands resting on his knees, and decides to listen faithfully to what she still has to tell him. He will then reflect on what she tells him. She opens her mouth again to speak.

“Tomasz, I see that you do not understand what I am talking about. Indeed, the oldest testimony that you humans have of Vampires is a poem that dates back to the eighteenth century. This poem evokes Vampires with elongated canines, or fangs as you may know them. So, I can easily imagine that you have some difficulty considering that one of these creatures may not have this peculiar feature. Yet that is possible, and you have the living proof of it before your eyes.”

Tomasz does not react. He has never read this poem she is talking about. It must be said that he is not a man of letters. As for his studies, he did not have the opportunity to really push them too far. He has some sort of cleverness, but he also has a lot of common knowledge gaps. Eleonore quickly realizes that he has never been interested in Vampires. She sighs in disappointment before resuming.

“I have been searching for my origins for centuries, and you are the only one who can help me.”

“Centuries?!” jumped Tomasz, as if out of deep lethargy. “Say, aren’t you overdoing it a bit?”

“I would ask you to address me with more respect, Tomasz. I am several hundred years older than you and believe that if I had not needed your services, I would have withdrawn from your presence. I am not the sort to mingle with little people like you, Tomasz; you should know that.”

“Okay, very well, I understand,” said Tomasz, unable to contain the irritation she had just aroused in him. “Tell me more then; how can I help, a little man as I am?”

“Do not mistake my intentions, Tomasz. My only goal was to get a reaction from you. And here it is! We can move on now. For tonight, I cannot give you more information. Just know that I am looking for an item. That object will be the answer to all my questions as soon as I have it in my hands. And you are the only one who can give me access to this object.”

“And how do you expect me to find you something I know nothing about?”

“I am out of time now, so I cannot offer you any more details at this time. We will meet again, Tomasz, do not fear.”

Tomasz suppresses a growl. He is not sure he can be at ease with what Eleonore has just told him. Still, the latter stands up suddenly, still with grace but very confidently, and invites him with a large wave of her hand to walk towards the exit. Tomasz, not wanting to stay a minute longer than necessary in her company, complies without her needing to ask him a second time.

When he has passed the front door, he turns around. Just in time to see the door close in on Eleonore. Yet she could not have closed it herself, she was way too far away. But then who? At the bottom of the stairs, the messenger who brought Tomasz to this house is waiting for him. So, it was not him either. Tomasz stays still for a few seconds as if stunned, trying to figure out what he has just witnessed. The messenger clears his throat, telling Tomasz to come back to reality.

“Mr Wlidùcious,” he said in a neutral tone, “please follow me.”

Tomasz turns and sees the messenger, beckoning him down the steps. Which he hurriedly takes, without the slightest hesitation. On the way home, he dares not ask questions. He understood that the messenger was not the most talkative and that he would get no answer from him. Even so, there are many questions running through his head at present, and he will keep being preoccupied with them until he falls onto his bed, when he gets home.

He even forgot to have dinner; he immediately went to bed. So, when morning comes and his alarm clock rings, the only thought that crosses his mind is that he has had an incredible dream. He remains oblivious to what it was about for now, as he prepares to join Roger for work. Roger arrives, like usual, on time. Tomasz picks up his jacket, which he had carelessly thrown on a chair, and locks his front door. He ignores Eleonore’s letter, which her messenger brought him the day before and which he left on his coffee table.

His morning at work alongside Roger goes much better than the previous day. Roger takes advantage of Tomasz’s apparent good mood to ask him what happened the day before, in a most sympathetic tone so as not to annoy him. Tomasz laughs and replies that he had just had a bad night, that he had had a nightmare and that he ended up not getting enough sleep. Roger gently pats him on the shoulder, as if to let him know everything is okay.
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CHAPTER 3: Eleonore and Her Past
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Meanwhile, from the top of her tower, which looks more like an old building than a castle, tall and slender Eleonore is in two minds. Her only clue to getting her hands on what she has been looking for so long is a man who does not seem to be capable of doing anything. Yet it is impossible that he does not know anything. When she told him about the item she wanted, he should have realized what she was talking about, he should have flinched at best, run away at worst. And she certainly would have wiped him off the face of the earth for that affront. Which she would no doubt have regretted afterwards since this is her only chance to get what she wants.

She finds it quite plausible that he has no idea who she is. Over the centuries, she had taken great care to leave no trace. She was just a mere mortal like Tomasz when the first Vampire – Aleksis Sazanùs – turned her in his own image. She was well aware of the fate to which she had been doomed for several hundred years. This Vampire had made her as she became so that she could be able to fight off the descendants of his son, Luisù, whom he had with the Witch Mylena Zetùnova.

To do this, she counted on transforming, in turn, any humans she found fit for the task throughout her long existence. But she realized, over the years, that she was prevented from doing so. As she made humans drink her blood – as that was the only way to impart the gift of immortality that she had from Aleksis – she saw her new allies fall dead one after another. It took her a few hundred years of researching and asking all the wizards she had come across to figure it out.

She was the victim of a curse. She had been constrained in her ability to create an army to be able to fight against that of Luisù. Her task was not the simplest, since it was up to her to defeat the ones who created chaos. Indeed, Luisù’s descendants, with the fangs he had bequeathed to them, took great pleasure in decimating humans around the world. They thus allowed these same humans to realize that the creatures of the night do exist. And this is how the German poet Heinrich Augustin von Ossenfelder was able to establish the first historical definition of the fanged Vampire when he wrote his poem Der Vampyr, in 1748.

When she had heard of this text, the existence of which she had just mentioned to Tomasz the other day, she had gone into a mad rage. From that year on, the figure of the Vampire became more and more famous. Bram Stocker had made a living out of it before Goethe, then Anne Rice, followed by other world-famous writers. All this is because of the descendants of Luisù Sazanùs. He had fallen in battle in 1470 against the first Hunter in history, created by the Eternals, who were themselves the invention of Mylena Zetùnova. Eleonore’s mission was to prevent the fanged Vampires from taking control of Earth, this Earth that belonged first and foremost to Aleksis, the first fangless Vampire, the very first Vampire in history.

But she could not do it without first finding a solution to her problem. The humans she gave her blood to drink had to live, not to die so soon afterwards. In time, thanks to the research she carried through, Eleonore had come to understand what was wrong. Mylena Zetùnova, Aleksis’s companion and Luisù’s mother, had created, with the aid of her capacities in black and white magic, a sphere, which she called the Novae Terrae. Within, she had locked up the greatest secrets of this planet: the creation of Earth by the first Vampire, the crucial information that the Vampires were the true masters of the world, as well as a power that can change everything.

Eleonore has not yet been able to find out exactly what this power was. Nevertheless, she has long believed that taking possession of the Novae Terrae would help her understand why humans cannot assimilate the blood she gives them. She had had the opportunity to meet a few souls who had had the good fortune to meet Mylena Zetùnova, and she had deduced from this the way Mylena saw things.

Indeed, soon after the birth of Luisù, Eleonore’s half-brother in a way, the Witch had a vision. A vision that made her realize that this much-desired son would become a threat to this world. Thus, Mylena Zetùnova had thought long and hard about what had caused the birth of such a diabolical being and had come to the conclusion that it was the natural result of the union of a Witch, however human she may be, and a Vampire.

She had realized that such a situation was not to happen again. So, she had explained to one of her few friends that she had a way to solve the problem, a confession that Mylena’s confidante had, in turn, repeated to Eleonore, before the latter would brutally obtain the confession. However, Eleonore could never find out what the Witch had been up to. She had never yet made the connection to the fact that the Witch had simply cursed the fangless Vampires, restraining their ability to pass their blood on to mortals.

By blocking this power, the Witch thus prevented fangless Vampires from reproducing. But she did that without considering that Luisù, who had fangs, did not need to shed his own blood to turn humans. The presence of fangs allowed him to turn humans into Vampires by drinking their vital fluid. In fact, throughout his life, he had bitten many mortals. He had killed some of them for nourishment and turned the ones that were to remain Vampires.

During this time, the first Vampires in history started to disappear, one by one. Aleksis passed away soon after turning Eleonore, leaving only her – at least to his knowledge. Igor Rostadov, the noble companion of Maria-Theresa, the servant to whom Eleonore was entrusted, and who was himself a fangless Vampire, was killed by the Eternals in 1459. As for Luisù, he was defeated a few years later, in 1470, by the same Eternals who had in the meantime created the order of the Hunters. Then followed Vlad III, assassinated in 1476. By this time, the Eternals had grown so powerful that they managed to contain the threat of the fanged Vampires, with the first Hunter in history by their side.

Eleonore had learned all this long after her escape with Maria-Theresa. The latter was solely responsible for the way Eleonore had evolved. To keep her safe, she had taken Eleonore far from her homelands – to Europe, more precisely to Spain. She informed her protege of her own roots, of who was Aleksis Sazanùs, but also who Luisù – this almost half-brother she had not been able to meet – was.

But Maria-Theresa did not share this information with Eleonore until well after their disappearance. So, Eleonore could not act sooner. It was not until the eighteenth century that she learned that part of history that could not be found in any book. It was the day she found Maria-Theresa in a mad rage that Eleonore begged her to enlighten her on what exactly was going on. Maria-Theresa had just read the poem Der Vampyr by von Ossenfelder. When Eleonore stepped forward to ask her for clarification about her reaction, Maria-Theresa realized that she could not hide her secrets any longer. She explained to Eleonore what this poem meant, which is that humans were now made aware of the existence of Vampires because of Luisù’s descendants, who had not been quiet enough to keep their presence hidden.

“Mother,” said Eleonore, “what does this have to do with you?”

“It has nothing to do with me,” Maria-Theresa had told her, “but it has everything to do with you. Eleonore, now you have to learn who you truly are. For many years, I kept quiet. I realize today that I was wrong not to explain to you what you represent.”

Eleonore then felt a shudder of fear run through her whole body. Maria-Theresa scared her terribly.

“My sweet child,” continued Maria-Theresa, “you know you need blood to live. But I never told you what the reason for that was. Eleonore, you are a Vampire, a descendant of Aleksis Sazanùs, the one by whom the world was created, long ago.”

“Mother,” Eleonore had said in surprise, “you frighten me.”

“Listen to me carefully, Eleonore. Aleksis Sazanùs found you and turned you in order to prevent his son Luisù from taking over this world. Luisù has been dead for the past three centuries, but his offspring still roam among humans. This poem that I have just discovered is proof. The time has come for you to do what you had been turned for.”
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